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RFP NHDOC 10-07-GFMED Temporary Nursing Services 
 

Questions and Answers 
 
 
 
Request for Proposal (RFP) Terms and Conditions: 
 
Question # 1: Section 8 – Proposal/Format Submissions, 8.2: “In addition, submit two (2) photocopies and one 
(1) CD (MS Word, MS Excel format only) of the proposals.”  
• The RFP document and required documents to be submitted per the Proposal Check Sheet are in .pdf format.  

Please advise if it would be acceptable to provide the copy on CD in .pdf format instead of MS Word or MS 
Excel. 

Answer # 1: Section 8 – Proposal/Format Submissions, 8.2: 
• All documents required for the submission of the proposal are originally generated using either MS Word 

format or with MS Excel object imbedded into a MS Word document.  The RFP documents to include the 
documents identified in the Proposal Check Sheet to be executed must be downloaded. Upon completion and 
execution of the proposal documents, please scan and convert all required documents in the order found on 
the Proposal Check Sheet into PDF format to be saved on one (1) CD. 

 
Question # 2: Section 30 - Written Narrative and Description of Evaluation Criteria, 30.2:  
• Please advise, if the response to the Written Narrative and Description of Evaluation Criteria is limited to 

one/two pages, or is the New Hampshire DOC seeking additional/expanded responses in a separate/additional 
section? 

Answer # 2: Section 30 - Written Narrative and Description of Evaluation Criteria, 30.2: 
• If there is a need to provide an expanded response beyond the one to two pages identified in the Term and 

Conditions of the RFP, please provide this information in this section. 
 
Question # 3: Section 30 - Written Narrative and Description of Evaluation Criteria, 30.2: “Prospective 
Vendors shall provide a concise one (1) to two (2) page written narrative in the form of a Cover Letter, on the 
organization’s letter head, identifying the following information: Ability to Provide Services, Financial Stability, 
Organizational Resources and Capability and References.” 
• Please advise if a response/information is to be provided in the narrative to address 30.2.1. Total Estimated 

Cost, along with information/responses for 30.2.2, 30.2.3, and 30.2.4. 
Answer # 3: Section 30 - Written Narrative and Description of Evaluation Criteria, 30.2: 
• Please do not include Total Estimated Cost to be provided in the narrative.  Limit the narrative to Ability to 

Provide Services, Financial Stability, Organizational Resources and Capability and References. 
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Question # 4: Section 30 - Written Narrative and Description of Evaluation Criteria, 30.2.2, Ability to 
Provide Services: “credentials and correctional experience demonstrated through qualifications/licensures/ 
certifications of employees who will providing requested services.” 
• Please clarify if this information is to be provided for our firm’s management and administrative personnel 

who will be providing services, or if it refers to the RNs/LPNs who will be providing services. 
Answer # 4: Section 30 - Written Narrative and Description of Evaluation Criteria, 30.2.2, Ability to 
Provide Services: 
• This information refers to the RNs/LPNs who will be providing the temporary nursing services. 
 
Question # 5: Section 30 - Written Narrative and Description of Evaluation Criteria, 30.2.4 References: 
“description of work experience to include previous customers served and number of years the prospective 
Vendor has been providing said services.”  
• Section 29 - Proposal Review and Evaluation Criteria. 29.3 states, “References shall be submitted. Please 

provide a list of all current clients with contact information and former clients with contact information for the 
past two (2) years.” 

• Please clarify the references information to be provided. 
Answer # 5: Section 30 - Written Narrative and Description of Evaluation Criteria, 30.2.4 References: 
• Please provide a list of all current clients (companies) that your organization has provided services (temporary 

nursing services) with the companies’ contact information for the past two (2) years. 
 
Question # 6: Section 33 - Award of a Contract, 33.1: The RFP states that a contract may be awarded to more 
than one (1) Vendor.  
 Question # 6a: Section 33 – Award of a Contract, 33.1: 

o Since it appears that the hours needed are low, how many vendors do you anticipate needing and 
why? 

Answer # 6a: Section 33 – Award of a Contract, 33.1: 
o The amount of vendors anticipated is dependent upon the outcome(s) of the bid proposal(s) 

submitted. 
Question # 6b: Section 33 – Award of a Contract, 33.1: 

o The RFP states that the Vendor may bid on the services needed for both the Northern NH 
Correctional Facility and the Southern NH Correctional Facilities. Is it acceptable to bid on the 
provision of RN and LPN services for one region but not both regions? 

Answer # 6b: Section 33 – Award of a Contract, 33.1: 
o Please submit one proposal (bid) for both the Northern and Southern NH Correctional Facilities.  

It is not acceptable to bid on the provision of RN and LPN services for one region but not both 
regions. 

 
Proposal Check Sheet:  
 
Format for Submission: “If interested in submitting a proposal for these services, please fully complete, execute 
and return the following documentation in the sequence below” (see Proposal Check Sheet, page 2 of 2 for 
sequence of required proposal documents). 
 
Question # 7: Certificate of Authority, Page 2 of 2: The two Certificates of Authority (Attachment 4 Corp w/ 
Seal, Attachment 4a Corp w/o Seal) each require the provision of “true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a 
meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation duly held on…”   
• It is possible that the next meeting date of our firm’s Board of Directors may take place after the RFP 

submission date, so we would not have the two resolutions to include with our RFP response.  
 
 
 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Promoting Public Safety through Integrity, Respect, Professionalism, Collaboration, and Accountability 

Page 2 of 4 



Answer # 7: Certificate of Authority, Page 2 of 2:  
• Proposals that are not complete shall be considered “technically non-compliant.”  Though, through “Other 

Remedies for “Technically ‘Non-Compliant’ Proposals,” Section 17, Terms and Conditions, The NH 
Department of Corrections, in its sole discretion, may determine that non-compliance with any RFP 
requirement is insubstantial.  In such cases the NH Department of Corrections may: 
17.1.1. seek clarification 
17.1.2. allow the Vendor to make corrections; or, 
17.1.3. apply a combination of the two remedies. 

 
Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Page 1 of 7: 
 
Question # 8: Description of Services: 

Question # 8a:  
o Are there Union rules that need to be considered when scheduling nurses? 

Answer # 8a:  
o Union employees are those State employees covered by the Collective Bargaining Agreement.  

When the NH Department of Corrections requests services to schedule a RN or LPN, the services 
provided are on a temporary contractual basis.  For those RNs and LPNs responding to a schedule 
request, they will be provided an initial sixteen (16) hour orientation which all internal rules, 
regulations and policies will be identified for compliance.  

Question # 8b: Section 1.1.1: Is any block scheduling anticipated under this contract? 
Answer # 8b: Section 1.1.1: 

o No there are no block scheduling anticipated under this Request for Proposal. 
Question # 8c: Section 1.1.8:  

o Is there an average cancellation rate? 
Answer # 8b: Section 1.1.1: 

o The average NH Department of Corrections cancellation rate is less than one percent (1 %). 
 
Question # 9: Service Schedule, Utilization and Location, Page 2 of 7: 
• Are there vacancies for RNs and LPNs at each facility?  If so, how many? 
Answer # 9:  
• Yes, the total vacancies are four (4). 
 
Question # 10: General Service Provisions, Page 3 of 7: 
• When service is needed, are the needs given in advance or is service needed last minute? Please describe. 
Answer # 10:  
• When services are needed, the NH Department of Corrections may provide advanced scheduling for long 

range needs and short term scheduling for unforeseen, emergency based needs. 
 
Question # 11: Exhibit B, Method of Payment/Estimated Budget, Page 2 and 3: 

Question # 11a:  
o Are the estimated volume of hours listed in Exhibit B the average of the hours used during the 

last two years?  If “Yes,” what is this average based upon?   
Answer # 11a:  

o The average is a projected, estimated volume by type of service.   
Question # 11b: 

o Are the estimated volume of hours listed in Exhibit B the total number of hours anticipated for 
RNs and LPNs over the two year budget period?   

Answer # 11b:  
o Yes, the estimated volume of hours listed in Exhibit B is the maximum number of hours 

anticipated for RNs and LPNs over a two (2) year budget period. 
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Question # 11c:   

o What happens if the needs exceed the estimated budget (more hours are requested); will a new 
PO be issued? 

Answer # 11c:  
o If the needs exceed the estimated budget (more hours requested), an incremental (increase to  the 

Contract Price Limitation) contract, mutually agreed upon between the Contractor and the NH 
Department of  Corrections, will be executed to include the following documents: P-37 (State of 
NH Long Form Contract), Incremental Amendment Agreement, Certificate of Good Standing, 
Certificate of Authority and Certificate of Insurance approved by the NH Attorney Generals 
Office and the Governor and Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.  Upon approval 
of the incremental contract by the NH Attorney Generals Office and the Governor and Executive 
Council of the State of New Hampshire, the existing PO will be increased to accommodate the 
Contract Price Limitation increase. 

 
General Questions: 
 
Question # 12: Please provide information on current vendors and rates. 
Answer # 12:  
• The current Vendor is MAS Medical Staffing Corporation, Manchester, NH.  Their current contract rates are 

the following: 
 

Shift RN Rate/Hr LPN Rate/Hr 
7am-3pm Weekday $39.50 $36.50 

3pm-11pm Weekday $41.50 $37.50 
11pm-7am Weekday $42.50 $38.50 
7am-3pm Weekend $42.50 $38.50 

3pm-11pm Weekend $43.50 $39.50 
11pm-7am Weekend $44.50 $40.50 

Holidays $1.50 * Rate $1.50 * Rate 
 
Question # 13: For the RFP an agency is required to submit records that show financial stability.  Will 
these financial documents be made public regales if the bid is won or lost? 
Answer # 13:  
• The financial documents of the awarded proposal(s) resulting in a Contract will become public information 

and those of non awarded proposal(s) will be retained as non public information. 
 
 
 

 


